
PUBLIC/LEGAL NOTICE 

 
The regular monthly Board meeting of the Lisle Library District (LLD) Board of Trustees will be held on August 14, 2024 at 

7:00 pm in the Meeting Room of the Lisle Library District, 777 Front Street, Lisle, Illinois. 

Public Comment Prior to the Meeting: Citizens may provide public comment via email: library@lislelibrary.org or via the USPS 

mail addressed to: Public Comment/Administration, 777 Front Street, Lisle, IL 60532, by 3:00 pm on the meeting day. 

Submitted comments will not be read aloud. Comments will be provided to the Board prior to the regular meeting and will 

become part of the meeting record.  

The LLD records all regular Board meetings. Any person who has a disability requiring accommodations to participate in this 

meeting should contact the Lisle Library during regular business hours within 48 hours before the meeting. Requests for a 

qualified interpreter require three working days advance notice. 

 

 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 

August 14, 2024 - 7:00 p.m. 

 

1. Roll call 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - general public comment period 

3. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable 

a. Vice President Bartelli and Trustee Breihan reviewed the July billings in August 

b. President Swistak and Trustee Martin will review the August billings in September 

4. Consent Agenda - Action Required 

a. Approve Minutes of the July 17, 2024 Board Meeting 

b. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 07/31/24, Investment Activity Report, 07/31/24, Current Assets 

Report, 07/31/24, Revenue Report, 07/31/24, and Expense Report, 07/31/24 

c. Authorize Payment of Bills, 08/14/24 

5. Unfinished Business 
a. Capital Improvement Project/Program 

i. Monthly Program Status Update - CCS Report including progress, budget updates, and 
capital program/hvac schedule 

ii. Vacant Lot Planning Discussion 
6.  Committee Reports 

a. Finance 

b. Personnel and Policy 

c. Physical Plant 

d. Strategic Planning  

e. Committee to Review Minutes - Retire 

7. Staff Reports 

f. Director’s Report 

g. Assistant Director’s Report 

8. New Business 

a. Approve tentative Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 24-06 (B&A) - Action Required 

This is a tentative Budget and Appropriation Ordinance of such sums of money as may be deemed 

necessary to defray all necessary expenses and liabilities of the Lisle Library District for the fiscal 

year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

b. Accept Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR) - Action Required 

Illinois public libraries are statutorily required to prepare an annual report to be submitted to the 

State Library as a condition of system membership. This is done via online submission of the 

IPLAR. 

c. Semi-annual review of executive session minutes - Action Required 

1 



Six-month review of executive session minutes to release or to remain closed. 

d. Review of executive session recordings more than 18 months old - Action Required 

Six-month review of executive session recordings to retain or destroy. 

9. Executive Session 

a. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(21): Discussion of minutes of meetings lawfully closed under this Act, whether for 

purposes of approval by the body of the minutes or semi-annual review of the minutes as 

mandated by Section 2.06 

10. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 

Bartelli, Berry, Breihan, Larson, Martin, Sullivan, Swistak 

11. Adjourn 

2 



 

1 
 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 
BOARD MEETING 

July 17, 2024 - 7:00 p.m. 
 

1. Roll call 
Present: 
Emily Swistak - President 
Marjorie Bartelli - Vice President 
Karen Larson - Treasurer 
Liz Sullivan - Secretary 
Vanessa Berry - Trustee 
Debbie Breihan - Trustee 
 
Absent: 
Josh Martin - Trustee 
 
Also present: 
Tatiana Weinstein - Director 
Will Savage - Assistant Director 
Jackie Kilcran - Recording Secretary 
Marc Rogers - CCS International Inc. [left the meeting at 7:20 p.m.] 
 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - general public comment period - None 
 

3. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable 
a. Treasurer Larson and Trustee Martin reviewed the June billings in July 
b. Vice President Bartelli and Trustee Breihan will review the July billings in August 

 
4. Consent Agenda - Action Required 

a. Approve Minutes of the June 19, 2024 Board Meeting 
b. Approve Minutes of the June 19, 2024 Executive Session 
c. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 06/30/24, Investment Activity Report, 06/30/24, Current Assets 

Report, 06/30/24, Revenue Report, 06/30/24, and Expense Report, 06/30/24 
d. Authorize Payment of Bills, 07/17/24 

MOTION: Treasurer Larson moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Trustee Berry seconded. 
Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 

5. Unfinished Business 
a. Capital Improvement Project 

i. Monthly Project Status Update - CCS Report including progress, schedule and budget updates 
& discussions 

 
Mr. Rogers stated that the sealcoating has been completed. Camosy has received their final payout. 

There is one open invoice remaining for Sheehan, Nagle, Hartray Architects. Mr. Rogers will complete 
the final accounting of the project within the next 30 days. 
 

ii. Approval to go out for public bids for HVAC replacements - Action Required 
 

Mr. Rogers explained two options for replacing HVAC equipment. The first option involves replacing 
all central and terminal equipment. The second option involves replacing only the central equipment. 

3 



 

2 
 

The second option would require maintaining two software systems; one to run the central 
equipment and one to run the terminal equipment. It would also require the Library to utilize two 

separate vendors to maintain the HVAC system. Mr. Rogers suggested requesting bids for complete 
replacement with an opt-out option for terminal equipment replacement. 

 

Mr. Rogers stated that one of the condensing units is at its end of life. However, all four condensing 
units use a type of refrigerant that is being phased out.  Mr. Rogers suggested obtaining bids on 
replacing one condensing unit as well as bids to replace all four units to see which was most cost 
effective. Replacing all would also keep the units on the same maturity schedule. 
 

After discussion, the Board agreed to obtain bids on both the BAS and the condensing units. 
MOTION: Trustee Breihan move to approve the issuance of a public Request for Bid for a Building 
Automation System Replacement and for Condensing Unit Replacements. Treasurer Larson seconded. 
Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 
Mr. Rogers left the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 

 
6. Committee Reports 

 
President Swistak stated that there have been no Committee meetings since the appointment of new 
members. She asked the new chairs if they wanted to say a few words. 
 

a. Finance - Trustee Breihan said she is excited to be part of the Committee. 
b. Personnel and Policy - Trustee Berry said she is excited and thanked President Swistak for the 

opportunity to Chair the Committee.  
c. Physical Plant - Vice President Swistak stated that Trustee Martin relayed to her that he is looking 

forward to chairing the Committee.  

d. Strategic Planning - Director Weinstein will be contacting members of the Committee in the near 

future to schedule the next meeting. 

 
7. Staff Reports 

 
a. Director Weinstein stated that the LLD marched in Lisle’s 4th of July Parade. She thanked the Trustees 

for participating. She attended an intergovernmental meeting at the Lisle Park District.  Illinois 
Representative Terra Costa Howard will be at the Library for constituent meetings on July 23, from 
10:00 a.m. to noon. The LLD will be participating in the National Night Out on August 6th. Director 
Weinstein also stated that she attended a meeting with the Village’s event team regarding possible 
future events, such as a holiday event and a College of DuPage 2025 art event. 

 
The LLD is hosting a Lisle Township donation box for personal care items in the lobby which will 
benefit community members in need.  Annexation Ordinance 24-04 has been filed with the DuPage 
County Recorder. August 14, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. is the dedication of the Oak Study Room to the Lisle 
Woman’s Club. All Trustees are welcome to attend. 

 
The LLD experienced some power and technology outages as a result of the powerful storms in early 
July. The technology and electrical issues have been resolved. There was water seepage in the 
concrete foundation on the south wall of the building. Methods of repair are still being researched. 

 
 
 

4 



 

3 
 

b. Assistant Director Savage stated that a representative from DuPage County came to the LLD for voter 
registrar training. The LLD now has 9 staff members qualified to register patrons to vote. The LLD 
event team has finalized plans for Fall Fest which will take place on September 27th, from 5:00-7:00 
p.m.  
 
Assistant Director Savage stated that he continues to monitor the performance of the cleaning crew 
and feels progress is being made on the quality of service. Dhamer Plumbing was on site to address 
the automatic flushing sensors in the west end of the building. They also replaced a diaphragm in one 
of the family restrooms. Terrance Electric repaired the YS computer connections. They also repaired 
an inverter circuit that was overloaded. The cause of the overload was a defective bollard light in the 
pergola area. He is working with Marc Rogers to determine the warranty on the bollard. J and J Tree 
Service removed 13 damaged locust trees on the south side of the property.  

 
8. New Business 

a. Approve Resolution 24-03: authorizing preparation and filing of the Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance (B&A) - Action Required 
MOTION: Secretary Sullivan moved to approve Resolution 24-03 a resolution authorizing the 
preparation and filing of the Budget and Appropriation, otherwise known as the B&A. Trustee Berry 
seconded. 
 
Director Weinstein provided an explanation of Resolution 24-03: authorizing preparation and filing of 
the Budget and Appropriation Ordinance (B&A). 
 
Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 

b. Approve Public Notice of Public Hearing on B&A - Action Required 
MOTION: Treasurer Larson moved to approve the Public Notice of a Public Hearing on the Lisle 
Library District’s B&A. Trustee Breihan seconded. 
 
Director Weinstein provided an explanation of the Public Notice of Public Hearing on B&A. 
 
Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 

9. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 
  
Treasurer Larson had no comments. 
 
Secretary Sullivan said she enjoyed the quarterly reports. She said she was impressed with the Global 
Language Storytime program. She was also thrilled to see that the LLD was a certified Monarch Butterfly  
Waystation. 
 
Trustee Breihan said she appreciated the quarterly reports. She recommended having occasional in-person 
department director reports at Board meetings.  
 
Trustee Berry said she attended the Craft & Coffee program. She said she thoroughly enjoyed it and 
mentioned that it was well attended. She stated that her son attended the Books and Banter program, and 
that he enjoyed the discussion. She is pleased with the wide variety of programming the LLD offers. 
 

5 



 

4 
 

Vice President Bartelli said she enjoyed the 4th of July Parade. She stated that she also appreciated the 
quarterly reports. She acknowledged the Technical Services Department for reclassifying the YS non-fiction 
books. 
 
President Swistak stated that she loved the 4th of July Parade and thanked the Trustees for participating. 
 

10. Adjourn 
MOTION: Secretary Sullivan moved to adjourn the meeting. Vice President Bartelli seconded. 
Voice Vote - All Aye. The motion passed. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
Recorded by 
 
____________________________________ 
Jackie Kilcran, Recording Secretary 
 
Approved by the Board of Trustees on August 14, 2024. 
 
Approved by 
 
_____________________________________ 
Liz Sullivan, Secretary of the LLD Board of Trustees 

6 



7 



8 



9 



10 



11 



12 



13 



14 



15 



16 



17 



18 



19 



20 



21 



22 



23 



24 



M
o

n
th

ly
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 J
u

ly
 2

0
2

4

Ju
l-

2
4

Y
T

D
 F

Y
 2

3
/2

4
Y

T
D

 F
Y

 2
4

/2
5

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

C
h

ec
ko

u
ts

R
e

n
e

w
al

s
TO

TA
LS

A
d

u
lt

 N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t
2

,4
2

3
2

,4
6

5
4

,8
8

8
5

,4
3

8
4

,8
8

8
-1

0
.1

1
%

A
d

u
lt

 P
ri

n
t

5
,1

7
4

4
,3

2
6

9
,5

0
0

9
,7

3
6

9
,5

0
0

-2
.4

2
%

A
d

u
lt

 T
o

ta
l

7
,5

9
7

6
,7

9
1

1
4

,3
8

8
1

5
,1

7
4

1
4

,3
8

8
-5

.1
8

%
YS

 N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t
7

5
8

1
,0

5
9

1
,8

1
7

2
,2

9
8

1
,8

1
7

-2
0

.9
3

%

YS
 P

ri
n

t
9

,9
4

2
7

,8
5

4
1

7
,7

9
6

1
6

,9
2

6
1

7
,7

9
6

5
.1

4
%

To
ta

l Y
S

1
0

,7
0

0
8

,9
1

3
1

9
,6

1
3

1
9

,2
2

4
1

9
,6

1
3

2
.0

2
%

D
ig

it
al

 M
ed

ia
O

ve
rd

ri
ve

6
,0

8
1

6
,0

8
1

5
,1

0
9

6
,0

8
1

1
9

.0
3

%

h
o

o
p

la
2

,8
8

4
2

,8
8

4
2

,4
9

2
2

,8
8

4
1

5
.7

3
%

O
ve

rd
ri

ve
 M

ag
az

in
es

4
6

1
4

6
1

1
1

7
4

6
1

2
9

4
.0

2
%

P
re

ss
R

e
ad

er
4

1
2

4
1

2
9

1
4

4
1

2
-5

4
.9

2
%

K
an

o
p

y
5

1
1

5
1

1
3

3
4

5
1

1
5

2
.9

9
%

To
ta

l D
ig

it
al

1
0

,3
4

9
0

1
0

,3
4

9
8

,9
6

6
1

0
,3

4
9

1
5

.4
2

%
Su

b
to

ta
l P

ri
n

t 
+ 

N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t/
D

ig
it

al
2

8
,6

4
6

1
5

,7
0

4
4

4
,3

5
0

4
3

,3
6

4
4

4
,3

5
0

2
.2

7
%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
 S

es
si

o
n

s 
Lo

gi
n

s 
*

1
,4

2
0

1
,4

2
0

1
,1

9
2

1
,4

2
0

1
9

.1
3

%

D
at

ab
as

e 
U

sa
ge

/U
n

iq
u

e 
Lo

gi
n

s
8

,3
1

5
8

,3
1

5
5

,8
7

3
8

,3
1

5
4

1
.5

8
%

W
ir

el
es

s 
U

se
1

,3
0

3
1

,3
0

3
9

8
6

1
,3

0
3

3
2

.1
5

%
Sc

an
n

X
 s

es
si

o
n

s/
jo

b
s

2
2

8
2

2
8

1
6

8
2

2
8

3
5

.7
1

%

M
u

se
u

m
 A

d
ve

n
tu

re
 P

as
se

s
6

0
6

0
6

1
6

0
-1

.6
4

%

To
ta

l I
T/

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

Se
ss

io
n

s
1

1
,3

2
6

0
1

1
,3

2
6

8
,2

8
0

1
1

,3
2

6
3

6
.7

9
%

To
ta

l C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
3

9
,9

7
2

1
5

,7
0

4
5

5
,6

7
6

5
1

,6
4

4
5

5
,6

7
6

7
.8

1
%

B
o

rr
o

w
er

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Ju
ly

 2
0

2
4

 T
o

ta
l

Y
T

D
 2

3
/2

4
Y

T
D

 2
4

/2
5

Y
T

D
 %

 C
h

an
ge

N
ew

 L
ib

ra
ry

 C
ar

d
s 

A
d

d
ed

1
6

9
1

8
2

1
6

9
-7

.1
4

%
* 

Se
ss

io
n

s 
w

er
e 

ch
an

ge
d

 f
ro

m
 2

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
 o

n
 8

/3
1

/2
3

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

3
,1

1
8

3
,0

7
5

3
,1

1
8

1
.4

0
%

To
ta

l #
 R

e
gi

st
er

ed
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

1
0

,2
8

9
8

,8
4

9
1

0
,2

8
9

1
6

.2
7

%

In
te

rL
ib

ra
ry

 L
o

an
s

M
at

er
ia

ls
 S

en
t

5
0

5
3

5
0

-5
.6

6
%

M
at

er
ia

ls
 R

ec
ei

ve
d

3
6

5
3

5
1

3
6

5
3

.9
9

%

P
o

la
ri

s/
C

at
al

o
g 

H
o

ld
s

H
o

ld
s 

P
la

ce
d

3
,2

3
6

3
,1

9
1

3
,2

3
6

1
.4

1
%

H
o

ld
s 

C
h

ec
ke

d
 O

u
t 

2
,5

7
9

2
,5

3
0

2
,5

7
9

1
.9

4
%

P
ic

k-
U

p
 W

in
d

o
w

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

ts

# 
o

f 
P

at
ro

n
s/

U
se

rs
1

9
2

3
1

9
-1

7
.3

9
%

# 
o

f 
It

e
m

s 
P

ic
ke

d
 U

p
/C

h
ec

ke
d

 O
u

t
5

3
9

6
5

3
-4

4
.7

9
%

25 



Li
sl

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

- 
P

ro
gr

am
 a

n
d

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 2

0
2

4

Li
b

ra
ry

 W
id

e
A

d
u

lt
Y

o
u

th
 

TS
/C

ir
c

Li
te

ra
cy

TO
TA

L
Y

TD
 F

Y
2

3
/2

4
Y

TD
 F

Y
2

4
/2

5
 %

 C
h

an
ge

Li
b

ra
ry

 E
ve

n
t 

St
at

is
ti

cs
 

St
af

f 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 P
ro

gr
am

s
1

0
6

3
1

3
8

6
6

1
8

6
4

0
.9

8
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

1
1

4
1

,1
7

6
1

7
1

,3
0

7
8

1
1

1
,3

0
7

6
1

.1
6

%
C

o
m

p
u

te
r/

Te
ch

n
o

lo
gy

 P
ro

gr
am

s
2

0
2

2
2

0
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

1
5

0
1

5
1

0
1

5
5

0
.0

0
%

P
er

fo
rm

er
/S

p
ea

ke
r/

A
u

th
o

r
3

1
4

3
4

3
3

.3
3

%
A

tt
en

d
ee

s
3

7
5

8
9

5
1

1
1

9
5

-1
4

.4
1

%

LL
D

 E
ve

n
ts

 (
Su

m
R

d
, R

SG
, N

at
lL

ib
W

k,
 w

h
o

le
 L

ib
 e

ve
n

t)
0

0
0

0
--

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

0
0

0
0

--
To

ta
l N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

P
ro

gr
am

s 
0

1
5

6
4

1
3

0
9

2
6

6
9

2
3

9
.3

9
%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
0

1
6

6
1

,2
3

4
1

7
0

1
,4

1
7

9
3

2
1

,4
1

7
5

2
.0

4
%

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s
2

,0
3

7
1

,9
1

1
7

4
1

4
,6

8
9

4
,8

0
4

4
,6

8
9

-2
.3

9
%

V
o

lu
n

te
er

 H
o

u
rs

   
7

.5
0

4
2

6
.0

0
4

3
3

.5
0

3
3

0
.0

0
4

3
3

.5
0

3
1

.3
6

%
.

N
o

ta
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

2
9

2
9

2
4

2
9

2
0

.8
3

%
LL

D
 K

in
d

n
es

s 
C

ar
d

s 
*

*
N

/A
N

/A
0

8
4

0
-1

0
0

.0
0

%
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s 
1

3
1

5
0

5
1

0
0

.0
0

%
P

at
ro

n
s 

Se
rv

ed
 b

y 
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 V
is

it
s

2
2

7
1

4
0

2
2

7
5

9
4

0
5

9
4

1
0

0
.0

0
%

H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
D

at
es

 
3

3
2

3
5

0
.0

0
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 v
ia

 H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y
1

3
3

1
3

3
9

2
1

3
3

4
4

.5
7

%
To

ta
l O

u
tr

ea
ch

 P
ro

gr
am

s
4

3
1

8
2

8
3

0
0

.0
0

%
To

ta
l P

at
ro

n
s 

Se
rv

ed
 w

it
h

 O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
s

3
6

0
1

4
0

2
2

7
7

2
7

9
2

7
2

7
6

9
0

.2
2

%
C

iv
ic

 F
ac

ili
ty

 U
se

 
Li

te
ra

cy
/T

u
to

ri
n

g 
R

o
o

m
 U

se
 (

p
at

ro
n

 c
o

u
n

t)
3

5
3

0
3

5
1

6
.6

7
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
O

u
ts

id
e 

G
ro

u
p

s 
U

si
n

g 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

Sp
ac

e 
2

7
1

3
2

7
1

0
7

.6
9

%
N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

G
in

kg
o

 &
 M

ap
le

 S
tu

d
y 

R
o

o
m

 R
es

er
va

ti
o

n
s*

**
5

6
N

/A
5

6
--

P
at

ro
n

s 
En

te
ri

n
g 

B
u

ild
in

g
1

1
,5

2
7

1
2

,8
1

4
1

1
,5

2
7

-1
0

.0
4

%
Fr

ie
n

d
's

 S
p

o
n

so
re

d
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

0
0

0
--

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

0
0

0
--

So
ci

al
 M

ed
ia

 U
se

Fa
ce

b
o

o
k 

(d
ai

ly
 p

ag
e 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

)
6

3
3

9
1

7
6

3
3

-3
0

.9
7

%

X
 (

f.
k.

a.
 T

w
it

te
r)

 F
o

llo
w

e
rs

1
,1

0
1

1
,0

4
3

1
,1

0
1

5
.5

6
%

In
st

ag
ra

m
 L

ik
es

4
9

6
5

2
4

4
9

6
-5

.3
4

%

Fl
ic

kr
 V

ie
w

s
4

,8
4

7
6

,4
2

3
4

,8
4

7
-2

4
.5

4
%

Yo
u

Tu
b

e 
V

ie
w

s
9

,2
5

4
1

0
,2

3
9

9
,2

5
4

-9
.6

2
%

eB
la

st
 E

n
ga

ge
m

en
t 

*
5

9
7

6
3

0
5

9
7

-5
.2

4
%

To
ta

l L
LD

 A
p

p
 D

o
w

n
lo

ad
s

1
,0

1
4

7
2

2
1

,0
1

4
4

0
.4

4
%

To
ta

l L
LD

 A
p

p
 S

es
si

o
n

s
5

,1
8

9
3

,4
8

7
5

,1
8

9
4

8
.8

1
%

* 
eB

la
st

 E
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
st

at
lin

e 
ad

d
ed

 J
an

u
ar

y 
2

0
2

3
.

**
 L

LD
 K

in
d

n
es

s 
C

ar
d

s 
re

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 in

 M
ay

 2
0

2
3

.
**

* 
N

ew
 s

ta
tl

in
e 

as
 o

f 
M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
4

.

26 



Lisle Library District 
Capital Improvement Program 
 

August Board Report (8/8/2024) 

 
Page 1 
 

 

North Main Entry Capital Improvement Project 
 
A. Close‐Out Progress Update 

1. Final known anticipated costs accounted for in budget update below. 
 

B. Project Cost Summary – Tracking under Budget 

Approved Total Project Budget: $7.7M 
Project has come in approximately $114k under budget. 

 

 
   

27 



Lisle Library District 
Capital Improvement Program 
 

August Board Report (8/8/2024) 

 
Page 2 
 

 

General Capital Improvement Program 
 
C. Executive Summary 

The Capital Improvement Program has been divided into (3) main projects: 
 
1. Mechanical Equipment Replacement (see additional details on next page) 

 Condensing Unit – out for public bid on 8/13. Bids due 9/4/2024 

 BAS – out for public bid on 8/13. Bids due 9/4/2024 

 Boiler – replacement is not critical at this time 
 

2. Capital Replacement. 

 Existing Facility Condition Assessment – discussion in September with Mechanical Costs 
 

3. Vacant Lots planning  (see additional details on next page) 

 Guideline Rough Order of Magnitude (ROM) Costs and scope to be discussed 

 
Program Executive Schedule:  
Updated to have overall cost discussion in September with Mechanical Bids 
 

 
   

28 



Lisle Library District 
Capital Improvement Program 
 

August Board Report (8/8/2024) 

 
Page 3 
 

 
D. Vacant Lot Planning Discussion 

For discussion with the Board, based on preliminary scope discussions a conservative project budget for 
developing the south lot may be in the range of $590k without a pedestrian bridge crossing from the Library 
site to the vacant lot.  
 
In summary: 
  Building/Construction Costs:     $485,000 
  Professional Services Costs:    $  75,000 
  Contingency:        $  30,000 

GUIDLINE Project Cost:      $590,000 
 
Project Cost ADD for Pedestrian Bridge:  $475,000 

 
Cost are all GUIDELINE and can be scaled (up / down) based on scope and delivery of the project. A concept 
phase for a potential project would be the next step if the Library chose to further explore options to develop 
a vacant lot. 
 
 
Additional Detail is provided below for reference in discussion: 
 
 
 

Site Scope Reference: 
 
 

 
 
 
   

29 



Lisle Library District 
Capital Improvement Program 
 

August Board Report (8/8/2024) 

 
Page 4 
 

 
 

GUIDELINE Construction Cost Reference: 
 

 
 
 
   

30 



Lisle Library District 
Capital Improvement Program 
 

August Board Report (8/8/2024) 

 
Page 5 
 

 
 

GUIDELINE Project Cost Reference: 
 

 
 
   

31 



Lisle Library District 
Capital Improvement Program 
 

August Board Report (8/8/2024) 

 
Page 6 
 

 
 

GUIDELINE Project Cost Reference: 
 

 
 
 

32 



33 



34 



35 



 

 
 

LLD Budget & Appropriation (B&A) Overview 
 
What is the B&A Ordinnce? 
 
The Budget & Appropriation Ordinance, or more commonly known as the B&A, is an ordinance that 
Illinois taxing districts must adopt in order to spend the funding the Library receives.  The LLD presents 
a Tentative B&A in August and a final draft for approval in September.  
 
The Budget column within Ordinance 24-06 indicates Board-approved working budget expenditures 
and the Appropriation column designates the District’s authorization to expend funds for any necessary 
obligations that extend beyond budgeted categories. The Ordinance accounts for the District’s 
operational expenditures as well as Special Reserve expenditures. 
 
Restated, the Appropriation column is not the District’s intention to spend this provision. The 
Appropriation is purely an allowance should the District require spending beyond planned-for expenses. 
Examples of unintended expenses may include supplemental tree removal service due to severe 
weather events or if gas/electricity rates suddenly rise; expenditures beyond the control or predictive 
abilities of the District. 
 
Allowances for Funds 
 
The LLD has four major funds: Corporate, IMRF, FICA, and Special.  All funds are recorded on the B&A 
Ordinance. Some institutions simply double their budget or provide flat increases of 20% to account for 
such expenses. The LLD has regularly, thoughtfully, examined each account category to determine its 
Appropriation. The total appropriation in the Corporate Fund shows a reasonable 13.75% ($605,975) 
allowance for unintended expenses in all operating expenditure lines.  
 
The IMRF and FICA Funds show negligible appropriation allowances of 3.3% ($5,000) and 7.8% 
($14,000) respectively.  
 
The Special Reserve Fund shows a significant appropriation allowance of 81% ($615,000). This provision 
captures conservative estimates for capital improvements such as the HVAC replacement project and 
development of the lot on Kingston Avenue.  
 

Note: Ordinance 24-06 reflects the budgeted transfer of $120,000 in funds from the Corporate 
Fund to the Special Reserve Fund and provides an allowance of $500.000, should the LLD fully 
advance capital improvement projects in FY24/25. 

 
Additional Information 
 
Please note that the LLD utilized pre-audit numbers (EOY/June 30, 2024), vendor estimates, as well as 
the Board approved Working Budget to draft Ordinance 24-06.    

 
 

36 



 

 

ORDINANCE 24-06 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION OF SUCH SUMS OF 
MONEY AS MAY BE DEEMED NECESSARY TO DEFRAY ALL NECESSARY EXPENSES AND 
LIABILITIES OF THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT, LISLE, DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2024, AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2025, AND 
SPECIFYING THE OBJECTS AND PURPOSES FOR WHICH SUCH APPROPRIATIONS ARE 
MADE AND THE AMOUNT APPROPRIATED FOR EACH OBJECT OR PURPOSE.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT: 
 
Section 1:  The following is the Annual Budget and Appropriation for the Lisle Library  
District for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT

37 



1 CORPORATE FUND

BUDGET

2024-2025

2024-2025

AMOUNT TO BE

APPROPRIATED

EXPENDITURES

A. EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries $2,315,000.00 $2,330,000.00

Health Ins/Unemp $340,000.00 $390,000.00

$2,655,000.00 $2,720,000.00

B. BUILDING COSTS

Internet/Inet $7,300.00 $10,000.00

Phone $20,000.00 $25,000.00

Gas $12,000.00 $15,000.00

Sewer/Water $4,000.00 $5,000.00

Electrical $40,000.00 $45,000.00

Maint. Contracts - HVAC $5,000.00 $5,500.00

Maint. Contracts - Cleaning/Pests $40,000.00 $45,000.00

Maint. Contracts - Landscape $40,000.00 $45,000.00

Non-contract Repr $60,000.00 $70,000.00

Rubbish Removal $4,000.00 $4,000.00

$232,300.00 $269,500.00

C. OPERATING COSTS

Postage/Shipping $14,000.00 $15,500.00

Printing $22,000.00 $25,000.00

Supplies/Processing $76,000.00 $76,000.00

Bank/Notices $6,000.00 $7,000.00

Local Travel $500.00 $500.00

$118,500.00 $124,000.00

D. INSURANCE COSTS

Fidelity Bond $2,250.00 $2,250.00

Prop. Damage (All Peril) $52,000.00 $60,000.00

Notary Bond $0.00 $0.00

Workers Comp $7,000.00 $7,000.00

$61,250.00 $69,250.00

E. CONTRACTUAL COSTS

Legal services $8,000.00 $15,000.00

Collection Agency $700.00 $700.00

Outsrc Acc/HR/Outsrc IT $150,000.00 $175,000.00

Investment Agency $4,500.00 $5,500.00

Acct Software $4,000.00 $5,000.00

Audit $9,725.00 $10,500.00

Payroll $13,000.00 $15,000.00

$189,925.00 $226,700.00

DRAFT

38 



F. PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT

Staff Dues/Conf $12,000.00 $12,000.00

Memorial/Recog $3,000.00 $3,500.00

In-Service Day $2,500.00 $2,500.00

Cont. Ed $8,500.00 $8,500.00

Trustee Dues/Conf/Train $3,000.00 $3,000.00

$29,000.00 $29,500.00

G. EQUIPMENT

Polaris $80,000.00 $85,000.00

Technology $70,000.00 $75,000.00

Facility $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Minor Equip $3,500.00 $3,500.00

Other Fac Maint/Repairs $20,000.00 $25,000.00

$183,500.00 $198,500.00

H. LIBRARY MATERIALS

Books $250,000.00 $260,000.00

Databases $135,000.00 $135,000.00

Doc Delivery/ILLs $26,000.00 $28,000.00

Audio/Visual $195,000.00 $210,000.00

Periodicals $25,000.00 $25,000.00

$631,000.00 $658,000.00

I. PROGRAMS

Lib-Wide Programs $30,000.00 $40,000.00

Comm Rel/Supplies $17,000.00 $20,000.00

$47,000.00 $60,000.00

J. OTHER EXPENSES

Gifts (if gifts are received) $2,000.00 $20,000.00

Per Capita Grant (per State if received) $46,000.00 $46,000.00

$48,000.00 $66,000.00

K. DEBT CERTIFICATE $66,000.00 $66,000.00

L. CONTINGENCY $25,000.00 $25,000.00

SUBTOTAL CORPORATE $4,286,475.00 $4,512,450.00

Transfer to Special Reserve* $120,000.00 $500,000.00

Total Corporate $4,406,475.00 $5,012,450.00

2 IMRF Fund $80,000.00 $85,000.00

IMRF (supplemental funding) $70,000.00 $70,000.00

Total IMRF $150,000.00 $155,000.00

DRAFT

39 



3 FICA $178,000.00 $192,000.00

TOTAL CORP/IMRF/FICA $4,734,475.00 $5,359,450.00

4 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND

Consulting $20,000.00 $25,000.00

Facility/Campus $15,000.00 $15,000.00

Furniture/Equip $25,000.00 $25,000.00

Security Systems $0.00 $10,000.00

HVAC Project Expense $200,000.00 $300,000.00

Outdoor Programming Expense $500,000.00 $1,000,000.00

TOTAL SPECIAL RESERVE $760,000.00 $1,375,000.00

TOTALS $5,494,475.00 $6,734,450.00

DRAFT

40 



 

 

Section 2:  As part of the Annual Budget, it is stated: 
         
 (a)  That the cash on hand at the beginning of the fiscal year is $ 5,917,875.12. 
 
 (b)  That the estimated cash expected to be received during the fiscal year from all 
sources is $ 4,728,405.00 1  
 
 (c)  That the estimated expenditures for the fiscal year are $ 5,494,475.00 per the 
Annual Working Budget. 
 
 (d)  That the estimated cash expected to be on hand at the end of the fiscal year is 
$5,151,805.12. 
 
 (e)  That the estimated amount of taxes to be received by the Lisle Library District 
during the fiscal year is $ 4,586,805.00. 
 
 (f)  That the estimated amount of income to be received from sources other than 
library taxes for the fiscal year is $ 141,600.00. 
 
Section 3:  That the funds in the total amount of $6,734,450.00 or so much thereof as 
may be authorized by law, be and the same are hereby appropriated for the corporate 
purposes of the Lisle Library District, as hereinafter specified, for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 
 
Section 4:  The receipts and revenue of the said Lisle Library District derived from 
sources other than taxation and specifically appropriated and all unexpended balances 
from the preceding fiscal year not required for the purpose for which they were 
appropriated and levied may be transferred to and become part of the Special Reserve 
Fund for the purchase of Sites and Buildings, the Construction, Repair, Remodeling, 
Improving and Equipping of the Same. 
 
Section 5:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval and publication as required by law. 
 

 
ADOPTED this 18th day of September, 2024, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

 
AYES: ______________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: ______________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: ____________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 

                                                 
1 This does not include budgeted transfer to the Special Reserve Fund.  

DRAFT

41 



 

 

Approved by me this 18th day of September, 2024. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Emily Swistak 
President, Lisle Library Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 

________________________________ 
Liz Sullivan 
Secretary, Lisle Library Board of Trustees 
 
To be submitted for publication on the 18th day of September, 2024. 
To be published in the Daily Herald on the 25th day of September, 2024. 

DRAFT

42 



D
R

A
F

T
 

43 



D
R

A
F

T
 

44 



D
R

A
F

T
 

45 



D
R

A
F

T
 

46 



D
R

A
F

T
 

47 



D
R

A
F

T
 

48 



D
R

A
F

T
 

49 



D
R

A
F

T
 

50 



D
R

A
F

T
 

51 



D
R

A
F

T
 

52 



D
R

A
F

T
 

53 



D
R

A
F

T
 

54 



D
R

A
F

T
 

55 



D
R

A
F

T
 

56 



D
R

A
F

T
 

57 



D
R

A
F

T
 

58 



D
R

A
F

T
 

59 



Senior Social Hour 

Test Prep with LearningExpress Library 

Page to Screen Movie Matinee: How to Train Your Dragon 

Periodical Cicadas with Dr. Carl Strang 

Books & Banter: Movie Edition 

Bust the “Myth of Aging”: Move into Freedom and Relaxation 

Olympics - 2024! 

Take a Break From Stress With Meditation 

 Digital Magazines with your Library Card 

 

Senior Social Hour 

Test Prep with LearningExpress Library 

Page to Screen Movie Matinee: How to Train Your Dragon 

Periodical Cicadas with Dr. Carl Strang 

Books & Banter: Movie Edition 

Bust the “Myth of Aging”: Move into Freedom and Relaxation 

Olympics - 2024! 

Take a Break From Stress With Meditation 

 Digital Magazines with your Library Card 

60 



Senior Social Hour 

Test Prep with LearningExpress Library 

Page to Screen Movie Matinee: How to Train Your Dragon 

Periodical Cicadas with Dr. Carl Strang 

Books & Banter: Movie Edition 

Bust the “Myth of Aging”: Move into Freedom and Relaxation 

Olympics - 2024! 

Take a Break From Stress With Meditation 

 Digital Magazines with your Library Card 

Senior Social Hour 

Test Prep with LearningExpress Library 

Page to Screen Movie Matinee: How to Train Your Dragon 

Periodical Cicadas with Dr. Carl Strang 

Books & Banter: Movie Edition 

Bust the “Myth of Aging”: Move into Freedom and Relaxation 

Olympics - 2024! 

Take a Break From Stress With Meditation 

 Digital Magazines with your Library Card 

61 



 

62 


